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Offender Electronic Monitoring Services 

Questions & Answers 
NHDOC RFP 14-09-GFDFS 

 
Question 1: Request for Proposal, Terms and Conditions, Section 3, Statement of Purpose, Page 1-2 of 32, 

“This program is offender funded.”   

a. Is the program 100% offender funded? 

b. Does NH DOC provide any portion of the program cost?  If so, what percentage?  

c. Does NH DOC use a sliding scale to set fees? If so, please provide criteria or formula. 

 

Answer 1:            
a. Yes 
b. No; Not applicable 
c. Not Applicable; Not applicable 

 

Question 2: Request for Proposal, Terms and Conditions, Section 4, Outline of Minimum Required Services, 

Page 2 of 32, “Vendor shall be responsible for installation of transmitters and electronic 

monitoring units. The Vendor shall be responsible for providing all equipment, maintenance of 

equipment services, collecting fees from offenders at no cost to the Department of Corrections.”  

a. Where does the incumbent vendor’s representative(s) currently do installs, removals, collect 

fees, and make service calls? For example: the vendor’s facilities? NH DOC facilities? 

Offender’s residences? 

b. What are the normal hours of operation the State requires the winning vendor to perform these 

services? 

c.  Are the vendor’s representative(s) required to do on-call or after-hours work? If yes, please 

describe.  

d. Are there service level agreements in place for response and turnaround times for installs, 

removals, service calls, and fee collections? 

 

Answer 2: 
a. The vendor currently uses a NH DOC facility for install. All else is done at offender 

residence. 
b. Business hours: Monday-Friday; 8AM-4PM 
c. No 
d. No 
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Question 3: Scope of Services, Exhibit A, Section B, General Questions:  What are the equipment make, 

model numbers, and daily rates being charged by the incumbent vendor for offender electronic 

monitoring service: 

Answer 3: 
 

Item Description Manufacturer Price 

1. Basic (RF) Monitoring   

 a.  Landline Sentinel Offender Services, LLC $  5.75 

2. 
Basic (RF) and Breath 
Alcohol Monitoring Sentinel Offender Services, LLC $  9.00 

3. Global Positioning System Sentinel Offender Services, LLC  

 a.  Passive  $  6.00 

 b.  Intermediate  $  6.25 

 c.  Active  $  8.00 

Optional, Additional Pricing 

4. Basic (RF) Monitoring Sentinel Offender Services, LLC  

 a.  Cellular  $  6.00 

5. 
Standalone Breath Alcohol 
Monitoring Sentinel Offender Services, LLC $  5.75 

 

Question 4: Scope of Services, Exhibit A, Section B, General Questions: 

a. Please provide a detailed breakdown of what type of monitoring equipment is being used.  

For example: 20 GPS units, 10 RF units, and 10 transdermal alcohol units.  

b. What is the average, minimum, and maximum number of days that offenders are enrolled in 

the electronic monitoring program?  

c. How many installs/enrollments occurred in 2013?  

d. How many de-installs/removals occurred in 2013? 

e. How many service calls occurred in 2013?  

 

Answer 4:  
a. Approximately 5-7 GPS & 10 Basic RF and Breath Alcohol Monitoring 
b. Approximately 8-12 months 
c. Perpetual daily population electronic monitoring cases averages at approximately 45-50 

per month.  
d. Perpetual daily population electronic monitoring cases averages at approximately 45-50 

per month.  
e. Minimal 
 

Question 5: Scope of Services, Exhibit A, Section 4, General Electronic Monitoring System Requirements, 

General Question:  “Vendor shall be responsible for installation of transmitters and electronic 

monitoring units. The Vendor shall be responsible for providing all equipment, maintenance of 

equipment services, collecting fees from offenders at no cost to the Department of Corrections.”  

 

a. Please provided a description of the electronic monitoring alert response protocols and 

procedures that are to be followed by the incumbent vendor and NHDOC. 

 

Answer 5: Alerts are provided to the NH State Prison for Men (NHSP-M) central control room. 
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Question 6: Scope of Services, Exhibit A, Section 1, Purpose, page 16 of 32:  “This program is offender 

funded. Offenders shall be responsible for maintaining telephone services at their monitored 

location.  Offenders are expected to pay up to two(2) weeks of services in advance.” 

 

a. What are the current vendor’s responsibilities with the State when offenders do not obtain or 

do not maintain telephone service at their monitored location?  

b. What procedures are followed when offenders fail to pay or short pay for the court ordered 

electronic monitoring services as described in the RFP?  

c. Will NH DOC staff or the vendor’s staff be responsible for data entry of new offender 

enrollments, de-activations, schedule adds and modifications, GPS zone creation, 

modifications, etc.?  

d. Does NH DOC use a formula or type of sliding scale to determine the daily rate that each 

offender will pay to participate in the program? If yes, please describe.  

 

Answer 6:  

a. Cellular or Terminated. 
b. Enforcement by the Vendor and possible termination from the program; applicable NH 

Department of Corrections staff is notified by the Vendor as well. 
c. Vendor Staff. 
d. No; Not applicable 
 

Question 7: Scope of Services, Exhibit A, Section 4, General Electronic Monitoring System Requirements, 

Paragraph 4.9, page 17 of 32:  “The Contractor shall repair and/or replace defective or 

malfunctioning parts and/or equipment immediately after the notice or knowledge of a 

malfunction or failure that may impede or interrupt the provision of electronic monitoring.” 

 

a. Please confirm that the State considers “immediately” to mean 24-48 hours. 

 
Answer 7: Next Business Day 
 
Question 8: Scope of Services, Exhibit A, Section 16, Indigent Offender Participation, page 22 of 32: “ The 

Contractor agrees to provide monitoring services for indigent offenders free of charge and shall 

provide one (1) free unit for every ten (10) accounts.”  

  

a. Who is responsible for determining whether an offender qualifies for indigent status?  

b. How is indigent status determined?   

c. How many indigent offenders were electronically monitored in 2013?  

d. What is the correlation between providing one free unit for every 10 accounts and providing 

free monitoring services for indigent offenders?   

e. Is there a maximum number of indigent offenders NH DOC will require the vendor to 

monitor? If yes, what is the maximum number?   

 

Answer 8: 
a. NH Department of Corrections  
b. Review of income. 
c. Approximately 2-5. 
d. None 
e. No; Not applicable 

 

  


